
Meeting Locat ion:

Embasssy Sui tes SFO

250 Gateway Boulevard

South San Francisco, CA 94080

(800) 967-2581 code: 7500508#

CSAC EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

BRIEFING MATERIALS
Wednesday, December 19, 2018

8:30 a.m - 2:30 p.m 

Cal i fo rn ia  S ta te 

Assoc ia t ion  o f  Count ies



  
CALIFORNIA STATE ASSOCIATION OF COUNTIES 

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 
Wednesday, December 19, 2018 | 8:30 am – 2:30 pm 

Embassy Suites SFO | South San Francisco | Pauling Conference Room 
 

AGENDA 

Presiding: Virginia Bass, President 
 

8:30 am BREAKFAST 
 

 

9:00 am PROCEDURAL ITEMS 
1. Roll Call 

 

 
Page 1 

 2. Approval of Minutes from August 22, October 4 & November 15, 2018 
 

Page 2 

 EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE ORIENTATION 
3. CSAC Organizational Structure 

 Virginia Bass | CSAC President 
 Graham Knaus | CSAC Executive Director 

 Roles & Responsibilities of Executive Committee Members 

 CSAC Constitution  

 CSAC Policy & Procedures Manual 

 NACo Involvement 

 Role of Executive Director 

 CSAC Staff Responsibilities 

 CSAC Financial Statement 
 

 
 
 
 
Page 9 
Enclosed 
Enclosed 
Page 10 
Discussion 
Discussion 
Handout 

 4. CSAC Strategic Plan Review 
 Graham Knaus | CSAC Executive Director 
 

Page 22 

 5. Discussion of 2019 State & Federal Legislative & Budget Priorities 
 Darby Kernan | CSAC Deputy Executive Director, Legislative Services 
 

Page 26 

12:00 pm LUNCH 
 

 

 6. Discussion of 2019 State & Federal Legislative & Budget Priorities (cont.) 
 Darby Kernan | CSAC Deputy Executive Director, Legislative Services 
 

Agriculture, Environment & Natural Resources 
 Cara Martinson | Senior Legislative Representative, AENR 
 

Health & Human Services 
 Farrah McDaid Ting | Legislative Representative, Health Policy 
 Justin Garret | Legislative Representative, Human Services 
 

Government, Finance & Administration 
 Dorothy Johnson | Legislative Representative, GFA 
 

Administration of Justice 
 Jessica Devencenzi | Legislative Representative, AOJ 
 

Housing, Land Use & Transportation 
 Chris Lee | Legislative Representative, HLT 

 

Page 26 

 7. Information Items (No Presentation) 
 Conflict of Interest Statement 
 CSAC Institute 2019 Course Schedule 
 2019 Calendar of Events 

 

 
Page 37 
Page 39 
Page 47 

 8. Public Comment 
 

 

2:30 pm ADJOURN 
 

 
*If requested, this agenda will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to persons with a disability. Please contact Valentina 
Dzebic at vdzebic@counties.org or (916) 327-7500 if you require modification or accommodation in order to participate in the meeting. 

 

mailto:vdzebic@counties.org


1 | P a g e  
 

 

 
 
 
 

CALIFORNIA STATE ASSOCIATION OF COUNTIES 

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 

2019 

 

PRESIDENT: Virginia Bass, Humboldt 
1ST VICE PRESIDENT: Lisa Bartlett, Orange  
2ND VICE PRESIDENT: James Gore, Sonoma 
IMMEDIATE PAST PRESIDENT: Leticia Perez, Kern 

 

URBAN CAUCUS 
 
Keith Carson, Alameda 
Carole Groom, San Mateo 
Kelly Long, Ventura 
Buddy Mendes, Fresno 
Mark Ridley-Thomas, Los Angeles 
Chuck Washington, Riverside 
Bob Elliott, San Joaquin (alternate) 
 
 
SUBURBAN CAUCUS 
 
Luis Alejo, Monterey 
Bruce McPherson, Santa Cruz 
Leonard Moty, Shasta 
Erin Hannigan, Solano (alternate) 
 
 
RURAL CAUCUS 
 
Ed Valenzuela, Siskiyou 
Terry Woodrow, Alpine 
Craig Pedersen, Kings (alternate) 
 
ADVISORS 
 
Bruce Goldstein, County Counsels Association, Past President, Sonoma  
Birgitta Corsello, California Association of County Executives President, Solano  

 

 



2 |  P a g e
 

CALIFORNIA STATE ASSOCIATION OF COUNTIES 

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 

August 22, 2018 

via conference call (800) 867-2581 code: 7500508# 

 

M I N U T E S 

 

1. Roll Call 

OFFICERS 
Leticia Perez, President 
Virginia Bass, 1st Vice President 
Lisa Bartlett, 2nd Vice President 
 
SUPERVISORS 
Lee Adams, Sierra County 
Kelly Long, Ventura County 
Bruce McPherson, Santa Cruz County 
Buddy Mendes, Fresno County 
Leonard Moty, Shasta County 
Craig Pedersen, Kings County  
Mark Ridley-Thomas, Los Angeles County 
Ed Scofield, Nevada County 
Steve Worthley, Tulare County 

ADVISORS 
Bruce Goldstein, County Counsels Association 
President, Sonoma County 
 
 
CSAC EXECUTIVE STAFF 
Graham Knaus, Executive Director (remote) 
Darby Kernan, Deputy Executive Director, 
Legislative Services 
Manuel Rivas, Deputy Executive Director, 
Operations & Member Services 

 

2. Approval of Minutes from July 27, 2018 Special EC Call 

A motion to approve the minutes made by Supervisor Adams; second by Supervisor 

McPherson – motion carried unanimously and minutes were approved. 

 

3. Proposition 2 (AB 1827: No Place Like Home Act of 2018) 

The Health and Human Services Policy Committee presented and recommended a support 

position on Proposition 2, the No Place Like Home Act (NPLH) of 2018, which will appear on the 

November statewide ballot. Proposition 2 would divert a small portion of the Mental Health 

Services Act (MHSA) funding from counties to leverage up to $1.8 billion in bond sales to reach 

their ultimate goal of building permanent, supporting housing for those living with mental 

illness. The bond revenue would later be returned to counties in competitive and non-

competitive grant programs. CSAC had a long-standing policy opposing any diversion of MHSA 

funding since the passing of Proposition 63 in 2004, however the housing and homelessness 

crisis has brought counties, the Legislature, Governor, and the Health and Human Services Policy 

Committee to the table to negotiate the NPLH Act of 2018. A lawsuit stating that only voters can 

change diversion funding from Proposition 63 was brought forth. In response, SB 1206 was 

introduced in June, effectively adding Proposition 2 to the November ballot. Changes have been 

made to Proposition by the legislature, including how the bond funding flows and which state 

departments would work on it. One major change will allow the legislature to divert MHSA 

funding up to $140 million / year before the bonds are sold. CSAC has worked to maintain this 

cap as the maximum that can be diverted from MHSA annually.  



3 |  P a g e
 

A motion to support Proposition 2 by Supervisor Ridley-Thomas; second by Supervisor 

Bartlett. Motion carried unanimously. Support recommendation will move to the Board 

of Directors for consideration. 

 

4. Legislative Update 

Wildfire Liability Update 
Staff gave an update on the Wildfire Liability issue. Inverse condemnation has been successfully 
eliminated from any proposals happening this year. There is a proposal coming together to fund 
vegetation management and forestry practices that will improve the PUC process and allow a 
prudence review when the utilities have negligence, providing a better process for how debt is 
passed through. The current proposal includes securitization, looking at 2017 debt to securitize 
over long periods of time, which will prevent utilities from going bankrupt. Additional bills are 
being considered and the proposal is coming together in a comprehensive way, driven by the 
Senate. The assembly is starting to get on board with the proposal and official language will be 
released shortly. Information will be distributed to the Executive Committee so everyone is 
aware of what is proposed. CSAC is supportive of the package and is working with the assembly 
to put together the proposals. CSAC does not want utilities to go bankrupt and is pushing to get 
a deal now so that inverse condemnation changes do not come back to the table. 
 

Bail Reform (SB10) 
The legislature passed SB 10 and CSAC is expecting the governor to sign off. The legislation 
adopted a good portion of the recommendations from the Judicial Council, including setting up 
a risk-based system. This system would rank low, medium and high-risk offenders, determined 
by a risk assessment. CSAC previously held an opposed unless amended position since the 
original proposal had counties setting up new departments to perform the risk assessments. In 
the final version of the legislation, all responsibility is placed on the Judicial Council, requiring 
they contract with counties to do the risk assessment, allowing for county funding. The Risk 
Assessment will be an option for counties. The legislation is currently leaning strongly toward 
probation and is willing to allow counties to use the departments they see best fit for the risk 
assessment function. The Judicial Council has committed to working with CSAC next year, and 
CSAC will work diligently to ensure that counties have the flexibility they need and that 
contracts are understood by all parties. The Judicial Council will receive $15 million from the 
budget to get this legislation running, and cleaning up the issues will cause a 10-month delay in 
implementation. SB 10 will go into effect in October of 2019. 
 
 
 
Meeting was adjourned. The next Executive Committee meeting will be in Monterey on October 
3-5, 2018. 
 

 

 

 



4 |  P a g e
 

CALIFORNIA STATE ASSOCIATION OF COUNTIES 

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 

October 4, 2018 

The InterContinental, The Clement, Monterey 

750 Cannery Row, Monterey, CA 93940 

M I N U T E S 

 

1. SPECIAL SESSION – CSAC Finance Corporation Program Update / Revenue Strategy 

Supervisor Leonard Moty, president of the CSAC Finance Corporation, and Alan Fernandes, CEO, 

discussed the background, goals, and mission of the Finance Corporation, along with the many 

changes and improvements that have been made. The Corporation shares an intricate 

relationship with CSAC and will ask the Executive Committee to appoint upcoming Board 

positions as they become available. Together, the two organizations strive to create and manage 

programs that benefit our members and improve public services for counties and their 

constituents. CSAC FC provides financial support to CSAC, creates and maintains innovative 

public services and products, collaborates with complementary national and state organizations, 

and maintains strong relationships with service providers to achieve its goals. The Finance 

Corporation discussed the many corporate partnership programs and ventures that contribute 

to the revenue stream and provide benefits to CSAC members. 

 

One of these programs is CSCDA, which is the Public Benefit Finance Program and the largest 

revenue stream for the CSAC Finance Corporation. This Joint Powers Authority (JPA), comprised 

of 57 counties and over 400 cities, provides financing for affordable housing programs and 

nonprofit organizations with a public service. CalTRUST is another pooled investment trust JPA 

of short term cash investments for treasurer tax collectors, as an alternative to LAIF (Local 

Agency Investment Fund). It provides the same safety as LAIF, with more liquidity and freedom 

for fund selections for finance directors. CSAC FC also participates in the Nationwide Deferred 

Compensation program, and continues to motivate more counties to participate. Coast2Coast, 

the discount prescription service remains a long-standing partner with the Finance Corporation. 

Easy Smart Pay, the property tax payment system, is a new program that is currently being 

piloted in San Luis Obispo County. The ultimate goal of the program is to save constituents 

money on transaction fees and to create a more efficient process for property tax payments. 

211 California looks to connect the unconnected and CSAC FC is in the process of managing the 

organization. California Cannabis Authority is another JPA currently made up of 5 counties. This 

is a data repository for the cannabis industry which counties are motivated to join in order to 

obtain the financial and tax data collected from the regulation of cannabis entities. 

  

CSAC FC was a long-standing national sponsor of U.S. Communities, the pooled purchasing 

system that was recently bought out by a competing entity. The CSAC FC and CSAC were able to 

negotiate 7 years of annual revenue that would have come from U.S. Communities. The buyout 

agreement was approximately $10.6 million, which is being invested and saved for future use. 

CSAC FC will analyze ways to use the funds to plan for the future annual revenue loss from the 

buyout. A portion of the funds will be used to invest in opportunities and new programs that will 

replace and replenish the lost revenue stream. 



5 |  P a g e
 

2. Roll Call 

OFFICERS 
Leticia Perez, President 
Virginia Bass, 1st Vice President 
Lisa Bartlett, 2nd Vice President 
Keith Carson, Immediate Past President  
 
SUPERVISORS 
Lee Adams, Sierra County 
James Gore, Sonoma County 
Carole Groom, San Mateo County 
Scott Haggerty, Alameda County 
Kelly Long, Ventura County 
Buddy Mendes, Fresno County 
Bruce McPherson, Santa Cruz County 
Leonard Moty, Shasta County 
Craig Pedersen, Kings County 
Ed Scofield, Nevada County 
Steve Worthley, Tulare County 

ADVISORS 
Bruce Goldstein County Counsels Association 
President, Sonoma County 
 
 
 
CSAC EXECUTIVE STAFF 
Graham Knaus, Executive Director 
Manuel Rivas, Jr., Deputy Executive Director, 
Operations & Member Services 
Darby Kernan, Deputy Executive Director, 
Legislative Services 

Ed Valenzuela, Treasurer, Siskiyou County (ex officio) 
 

3. Approval of Minutes from July 27, 2018 Special EC Call 

A motion to approve the minutes made by Supervisor Groom; second by Supervisor 

Moty. The motion carried unanimously and minutes were approved. 

 

4. Consideration of Distinguished Service Award Nominees 

Staff presented a list of nominees for the 2018 CSAC Distinguished Service Award, which is 

meant to recognize those that go above and beyond in their contributions to the improvement 

of government in California. The nominees this year were instrumental in driving the 

homelessness and wildfire legislature priorities this year. 

The following individuals were recommended for this award: 

 Senator Holly Mitchell 

 Senator Bill Dodd 

 Assembly Member Jim Wood 

 Assembly Member Brian Dahle 

Mark Ghilarducci | Director, California Governor’s Office of Emergency Services  

 

A motion to approve the nominated Distinguished Service Award Recipients made by 

Supervisor Long; second by Supervisor Gore. The motion carried unanimously. 

 

5. Consideration of Circle of Service Award Nominees 

Staff presented the Executive Committee with a list of recommended nominees for the CSAC 

Circle of Service Award. This award is more internally focused and was created to recognize 

county officials such as Supervisors, CAOs, department directors, staff and others whose service 

to their county and to CSAC have set them apart.  

The following individuals were recommended for this award: 

  



6 |  P a g e
 

Supervisor James Gore | Sonoma County 

 Supervisor Diane Dillon | Napa County 

 Supervisor Oscar Villegas | Yolo County 

 Bruce Goldstein | Past President, Sonoma County Counsel 

 Jill Abel | Yuba County Human Resources Director 

 Phil Ansell | Los Angeles County Director, Homelessness Initiative 

 Larry Lees | Shasta County CEO 

 Mike Powers | Ventura County CEO 

 Supervisor Ken Yeager | Santa Clara County 

 Supervisor Steve Worthley | Tulare County 

 Supervisor John Tavaglione | Riverside County  

 

A motion to approve the nominated Circle of Service Award Recipients made by 

Supervisor Long; second by Supervisor Scofield. Motion carried unanimously. 

  

6. Review of 2017 – 2018 Financial Statements (CSAC Budget / Audit) 

An annual audit review is conducted on CSAC’s financial records. This year’s review is not yet 

final as CSAC Finance Corporation and CSAC Foundation are still being audited. CSAC Treasurer, 

Supervisor Ed Valenzuela, and Manuel Rivas discussed the preliminary findings, which are clean 

and signify a good financial outlook at this time. An increase in membership dues was discussed 

and the team noted that CSAC has not had an increase in 6 years. At this time, CSAC is 

considering different structural changes regarding dues and will provide a formal presentation 

during the January Executive Committee meeting to consider a vote on how to proceed. Staff 

will have a comprehensive audit report for Executive Committee approval once CSAC FC and 

Foundation audit findings are available. 

 

7. CSAC 2018 Legislative Achievements Report 

A video outlining CSAC’s achievements throughout the year was presented. Staff attributed 

much of the year’s success to the collaboration of coalitions and the amazing teams behind 

every bill and measure lobbied against throughout the many transitions CSAC experienced.   

Along with the successful legislative issues undertaken this year, including tackling the 

homelessness issue and stopping changes to inverse condemnation, relationship-building has 

been a strong focus for CSAC. Staff has leveraged the cross-functionality within CSAC to 

aggressively fight for counties in a cohesive manner to implement policies. CSAC has taken over 

the Results-First Initiative from Pew-McArthur and continues to expand the program to more 

counties, providing counties with technical assistance. Staff will continue to find the delicate 

balance of strategic targeted aggression to fulfill the needs of counties at the state level. 

 

8. CSAC 2018 Operations & Member Services Operations Achievement 

The CSAC team has experienced multiple staff transitions this year, greatly impacting the 

Operations side of the company. CSAC has transitioned to a new Executive Director, acquired a 

Deputy Executive Director of Operations, Executive Assistant, and Accounting Team. Staff 

outlined the program changes and the new fiscal process that allows for less spending with 

more capacity and expertise. CSAC staff took pride in working through the many transitions 

while succeeding in the year’s advocacy achievements. The Foundation continues to grow as the 



7 |  P a g e
 

Institute becomes more prominent each year with a rotating satellite model, providing more 

access to county staff, giving CSAC the opportunity to develop the bench.  

 

Staff presented on the new methods the Communications and Member Services team has 

adopted to benefit the advocacy issues that CSAC works on. CSAC has become more open to 

being aggressive on key issues, allowing the legislative strategy to drive the communication 

strategy. As the value of communication rises in the eyes of the public, CSAC has become a vital 

source for the media, receiving more inquiries than ever before. The CSAC Twitter feed receives 

an average of 250,000 – 300,000 daily views. The video department has been an effective tool 

and continues to record webinars, regional meetings, power minutes, promotion fort events 

and best practices. The Challenge Awards program received 267 entries this year, strongly 

indicating the success of the program. The Communications team will be hiring a new 

Communications Coordinator and is looking forward to being more aggressive next year.  

 

9. Creative Economy Presentation 

Los Angeles County Supervisor Mark Ridley-Thomas and Managing Director of Micronomics, Roy 

Weinstein presented on the idea of Creative Economies and how counties can use them to 

improve the well-being of their respective constituents. Creative Economies are recurring events 

centralized around sports, culture, entertainment, or the arts, that generate cash flow into 

communities. Research has shown that one in ten jobs in California are in the Creative Economy 

and that these events can cause direct, indirect, and induced benefits on the community. 

Counties are encouraged to formulate their own annual events, which will draw crowds into 

their districts and provide widespread benefits throughout the state.  

 

10. CSAC Strategic Plan  

Staff provided an outline of the CSAC Strategic Plan, which was built upon and discussed 

throughout the day. The Committee was asked to think about the current Political Landscape 

and CSAC’s approach related to advocacy and how it can continue to evolve with the incoming 

administration. Staff revisited the opposition campaigns on Propositions 5 and 6, for which the 

Board of Directors has already approved financial contributions of up to $500,000 each. After 

extensive evaluation of the No on Proposition 5 Campaign, staff is convinced that the campaign 

will not need the full contribution amount that was approved. The Governor has requested that 

CSAC increase their contribution for the No on Proposition 6 Campaign. Staff recommendation is 

for Board of Directors consideration on flexibility to move the funding between campaigns as 

strategically needed. The contribution would require a majority vote Board action. 

 

A motion to bring a recommendation to the Board of Directors to add funds to the No on 

6 Campaign made by Supervisor Haggerty; second by Supervisor Groom. Motion carried 

unanimously. 

 

The meeting was adjourned. The next Executive Committee meeting will be on January 17, 2019 

in Sacramento, CA. 



 

8 | P a g e  
 

CALIFORNIA STATE ASSOCIATION OF COUNTIES 

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 

November 15, 2018 

via conference call (800) 867-2581 code: 7500508# 

 

M I N U T E S 

 

1. Roll Call 

OFFICERS 
Leticia Perez, President 
Virginia Bass, 1st Vice President 
Lisa Bartlett, 2nd Vice President 
Keith Carson, Immediate Past President 
 
SUPERVISORS 
Lee Adams, Sierra County 
Kelly Long, Ventura County 
Bruce McPherson, Santa Cruz County 
Buddy Mendes, Fresno County 
Leonard Moty, Shasta County 
Ed Scofield, Nevada County  
Steve Worthley, Tulare County 
 

ADVISORS 
Bruce Goldstein, Past President – County 
Counsels Association, Sonoma County 
Larry Lees, California Association of County 
Executives President, Shasta County 
 
CSAC EXECUTIVE STAFF 
Graham Knaus, Executive Director  
Darby Kernan, Deputy Executive Director, 
Legislative Services 
Manuel Rivas, Jr., Deputy Executive Director, 
Operations & Member Services 

 

2. Installment of CSAC 2018 – 2019 Board of Directors / Alternates 

The CSAC Constitution indicated that each county board shall nominate one or more directors to 

serve on the CSAC Board of Directors to serve a one-year term, commencing with the Annual 

Conference. Staff presented a list of nominees received from counties for the representatives 

and alternates (attached). 

 

Motion to approve the nominated members to the CSAC Board of Directors by Supervisor 

Moty; second by Supervisor Long; motion carried unanimously. 

 

The Executive Committee affirms the nominations for the following year’s Board of Directors. It 

was noted that some counties have not yet nominated their representatives. Additional 

nominees will be brought forward at the first meeting in January. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

9 | P a g e  
 

 
 
 
 
 

YOUR ROLE AS AN EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEMBER 
 
 
 
As an elected leader of CSAC, your role is to guide the organization to meet the needs of the 
members and serve as an ambassador for CSAC. 
 
 
Executive Committee Member Roles and Responsibilities: 
 

 Support and defend the CSAC Constitution 
  

 Guide the implementation of CSAC Policies and Procedures 
 

 Appoint an Executive Director to administer the activities and affairs of the Association 
 

 Be available to participate in Board and Executive Committee meetings and conferences 
 

 Be available to participate in the Premier Forum 
  

 Be available to discuss and provide direction on CSAC priorities and strategies 
 

 Be available to periodically participate in key meetings or strategic communications 
 

 Understand and promote CSAC policy positions including recommending advocacy priorities 
to the Board 

 
 Review and submit the CSAC Budget to the Board 

 
 Understand and promote CSAC Finance Corporation programs to CSAC members.  

 
Travel, Lodging, Meals, and other costs:  
 

 Costs for travel, lodging, and meals are generally funded by each member county, or, when 
applicable, may be funded by CSAC. Costs funded by CSAC may be considered income or a 
gift for purposes of FPPC reporting.  

 
The effectiveness of CSAC is critically dependent upon Executive Committee members as leaders on 
behalf of California’s counties. CSAC staff will do everything possible to support success in your roles 
and responsibilities and to ensure the strongest and most unified voice of the organization. 

 
 
 



 

10 | P a g e  
 

 



 

11 | P a g e  
 

 



 

12 | P a g e  
 

 



 

13 | P a g e  
 

 



 

14 | P a g e  
 

 



 

15 | P a g e  
 

 



 

16 | P a g e  
 

 



 

17 | P a g e  
 

 



 

18 | P a g e  
 

 



 
CSAC STAFF DIRECTORY ■ DECEMBER 2018 

 

19 |  P a g e
 

CSAC EXECUTIVE SERVICES 

GRAHAM KNAUS 
Executive Director 
(916) 650-8109 
gknaus@counties.org 

DARBY KERNAN 
Deputy Executive Director, Legislative Affairs 
(916) 650-8131 
dkernan@counties.org 

 

MANUEL RIVAS, JR.  
Deputy Executive Director, Operations & Member Services 
(916) 650-8101 
mrivas@counties.org 

 

VALENTINA DZEBIC 
Executive Assistant 
(916) 650-8101 
vdzebic@counties.org 
 

CSAC LEGISLATIVE SERVICES 

ADMINISTRATION OF JUSTICE  
JESSICA DEVENCENZI 
Legislative Representative 
(916) 650-8131 
jdevencenzi@counties.org 
 

ROSHENA DUREE 
Legislative Analyst 
(916) 650-8184 
rduree@counties.org 

STANICIA BOATNER 
Legislative Analyst 
(916) 650-8116 
sboatner@counties.org 
 

AMALIA MEJIA 
Program Coordinator 
Results First Project 
(916) 650-8132 
amejia@counties.org 

 

HOUSING, LAND USE & TRANSPORTATION 
KIANA VALENTINE 
Senior Legislative Representative 
(916) 650-8185 
kvalentine@counties.org 
 

CHRIS LEE 
Associate Legislative Representative 
(916) 650-8180 
clee@counties.org 

AGRICULTURE, ENVIRONMENT & NATURAL RESOURCES  

CARA MARTINSON 
Federal Affairs Manager / Sr. Legislative Representative 
(916) 650-8113 
cmartinson@counties.org 

MERRIN GERETY 
CEAC Program Manager 
(916) 650-8118 
mgerety@counties.org 

 

NICK CRONENWETT 
Legislative Analyst 
(916) 650-8108 
ncronenwett@counties.org 

 

ALL POLICY AREAS 
GEOFF NEILL 
Principal Policy & Fiscal Analyst 
(916) 650-8115 
gneill@counties.org 

GOVERNMENT FINANCE & ADMINISTRATION 
DOROTHY JOHNSON 
Legislative Representative 
(916) 650-8133 
djohnson@counties.org 

 

AMANDA YANG 
Senior Administrative / Legislative Assistant, Health & Human 
Services 
(916) 650-8102 
ayang@counties.org 

TRACY SULLIVAN 
Legislative Analyst 
(916) 650-8124 
tsullivan@counties.org 
 

 

KAREN SCHMELZER 
Legislative Assistant, Administration of Justice; Agriculture, 
Environment & Natural Resources; Government Finance & 
Administration; Housing, Land Use & transportation 
(916) 650-8182 
kschmelzer@counties.org 
 

LISA CURRIE 
Office Assistant / Legislative Clerk 
(916) 650-8121 
lcurrie@counties.org 

HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES 
FARRAH MCDAID TING 
Legislative Representative 
(916) 650-8110 
fmcting@counties.org 
 

JUSTIN GARRETT 
Legislative Representative 
(916) 650-8117 
jgarrett@counties.org 
 
 
 



 

20 |  P a g e
 

CSAC ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES 

KEVIN HYPSE 
Facilities Manager 
(916) 267-5667 
khypse@counties.org 
 

ERINN OLIVER 
Accountant 
(916) 650-8136 
eoliver@counties.org 
 

TINA ARMSTRONG 
Accountant 
(916) 650-8138 
tarmstrong@counties.org 
 
 

EVELYN COOK 
Contracted CPA 
 

FRANCISCO DE LA PENA BELATRAN 
Print Services Manager 
(916) 650-8170 
fbeltran@counies.org 
 

PATNU VANG 
Print Service Assistant 
(916) 650-8171 
pvang@counties.org 
 

CSAC PUBLIC AFFAIRS & MEMBER SERVICES 

DAVID LIEBLER 
Director of Public Affairs & Member Services 
(916) 650-8105 
dliebler@counties.org 
 

SARA FLOOR 
Communications Coordinator 
(916) 650-8119 
sfloor@counties.org 
 

CARA WATSON 
Meeting Planner & Event Coordinator 
(916) 650-8103 
cwatson@counties.org 
 

MICHAEL SWEET 
Technical Services Coordinator 
(916) 650-8123 
msweet@counties.org 
 

WHITNEY ALDERSON 
External Affairs Coordinator 
(916) 650-8172 
walderson@counties.org 

KIM BURLESON 
Communications Intern 
(916) 650-8123 
kburleson@counties.org 
 

BILL CHIAT 
Dean, CSAC Institute for Excellence in County Government 
(916) 650-8122 
bchiat@counties.org 
 

CHASTITY BENSON 
California Counties Foundation Program Manager 
(916) 650-8130 
cbenson@counties.org 
 

OLVIYA VATAMAN 
Administrative Assistant 
(916) 650-8127 
ovataman@counties.org 
 
 

CSAC CORPORATE PROGRAMS 

CSAC FINANCE CORPORATION 
 

 

ALAN FERNANDES 
Executive Vice President 
(916) 650-8120 
alan@csacfc.org 
 

LAURA LABANIEH 
Director of Operations 
(916) 650-8186 
laura@csacfc.org 
 

JIM MANKER 
Director of Corporate Relations 
(916) 650-8107 
jmanker@counties.org 
 

KYLE TANAKA 
Member Services Associate 
(916) 650-8114 
kyle@csacfc.org 
 

SENDY YOUNG 
Executive Assistant 
(916) 650-8137 
sendy@csacfc.org 

COUNTY COUNSELS’ ASSOCIATION 

JENNIFER HENNING 
Executive Director / CSAC Litigation Counsel 
(916) 327-7535 
jhenning@counties.org 

 

GENERAL CONTACT INFORMATION 
 

CALIFORNIA STATE ASSOCIATION OF COUNTIES 
1100 K Street, Suite 101 ■ Sacramento, CA 95814 

(916) 327-7500 ■ www.counties.org 

CSAC is on … follow us! 



21 |  P a g e
 

 



 

22 | P a g e  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CALIFORNIA STATE ASSOCIATION OF 
COUNTIES  

 
 
 

STRATEGIC PLAN 
 
 

2018 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

23 | P a g e  
 

 

CSAC VISION  
 
 

The California State Association of Counties (CSAC) serves as the effective advocate and unified voice of 
California’s 58 counties. 
 
 
 

CSAC MISSION  
 
 

To serve California counties by: developing and equipping county leaders to better serve their 
communities; effectively advocating and partnering with state and federal governments for appropriate 
policies, laws, and funding; and communicating the value of the critical work being accomplished by 
county government.   
 

 
 

CSAC VALUES AND PRINCIPLES  
 
 

The California State Association of Counties (CSAC) shall adhere to the highest professional standards of 
conduct relying on its character, integrity, ability, and strength.  To this end, CSAC subscribes equally to 

the following values and principles: 

 
1. County Focused – We will be county-focused and our policies will be member-driven. 
2. Integrity – We will be consistently honest and fair. 
3. Teamwork – We recognize that we can accomplish more working together, so we will support 

each other and strive to work as a team. 
4. Adaptability – We are committed to proactively and effectively adapting to new situations and 

environments. 
5. Respect – We genuinely value those who are different from ourselves and will respect a 

diversity of viewpoints, backgrounds, cultures, and lifestyles.   
6. Continuous Improvement – We are committed to personal development and we will all take 

deliberate steps to improve every day. 
7. Accountability – We will hold one another accountable and work tirelessly to accomplish our 

goals and fulfill our mission while upholding the values we share.   

 



 

24 | P a g e  
 

 

STRATEGIC GOALS 
 

FORMIDABLE ADVOCACY ON BEHALF OF COUNTIES 
 

Effective advocacy and strategic partnering with the state and federal governments for appropriate 
policies, laws, and funding needed for counties to best meet community needs. 

 
1. Effectively utilize county leaders in advocacy efforts to influence the Legislature, Congress, 

and state/federal Administration officials.  
2. Build and nurture strong relationships with decision makers.  
3. Establish powerful coalitions and partnerships with affiliates and other stakeholders to 

enhance the quality of policy development and the strength of advocacy.   
4. Optimize use of CSAC’s communications, education and operations resources to enhance 

advocacy. 
5. Strategically engage in the state initiative process; meet with prospective statewide 

candidates.   
 

 
 

DEVELOP AND EQUIP COUNTY LEADERS TO BETTER 
SERVE THEIR COMMUNITIES 

 
 

Providing tools and opportunities for county leaders to better serve their communities. 
 

1. Expand reach and influence of CSAC and programs within the California Counties Foundation, 
including the CSAC Institute for Excellence in County Government and the CSAC Pew-
MacArthur Results First Initiative. 

2. Leverage CSAC communications, legislative, operations, and finance corporation team 
collaboration to build relationships and increase member engagement opportunities across all 
projects and priorities. 

3. Regularly convene county leaders for rich educational, innovative, and collaborative 
opportunities in local, regional, state, and national settings.    

4. Facilitate relationship-building between county officials and other local, state, and federal 
policy makers. 

 
 
 



 

25 | P a g e  
 

 
STRATEGIC COMMUNICATIONS AND ANALYTICS 

 
 

Understand and communicate the value of the critical work being accomplished by county government 
through research, analysis, field work, and dissemination of best practices. 

 
 

1. Serve as the pre-eminent source of information on California counties, utilizing technology, 
social media, and other platforms to speak out concerning the critical work being 
accomplished by California counties as well as challenges and solutions.   

2. Expand internal research and analysis on county issues in order to enhance advocacy, and to 
increase the knowledge-base of county officials, policy makers, the media, and the public.  

3. Build robust partnerships with public policy foundations, the nonprofit and business sectors, 
and other potential partners to enhance education, innovation, tools for advocacy, and direct 
services.   

4. Build a stronger understanding of California counties and better communication with CSAC 
members through conducting media-work in the field, visiting county programs, attending 
member-focused events, and presenting at county board meetings.  
 

 
 
ACHIEVE EXCELLENCE IN ASSOCIATION MANAGEMENT 

 
 

Maximize the effectiveness of the association and value to members by adopting best-practices in 
association management while keeping dues as low as possible. 

 
 

1. Develop and implement an employee training and career development program to ensure 
recruitment, development and retention of talented staff.  

2. Maintain long-term financial security of CSAC by building a strategic reserve and a pool of 
unrestricted funds for statewide advocacy efforts.   

3. Implement state-of-the-art Information Technology (IT) to most efficiently meet member 
needs while protecting the security of county interests.  

4. Continue to cultivate mutually-beneficial relationships between counties and our business and 
community partners, and strengthen the relationship with the CSAC Finance Corporation and 
the California Counties Foundation. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

26 | P a g e  
 

 

 
Draft Policy Priorities for 2019 
California State Association of Counties 

 

 
County policy concerns are most often centered on resources to carry out state and local service 
responsibilities, the authority to carry out those responsibilities in local communities, and partnership 
with the state to improve existing programs.  
 
Those concerns pose challenges and opportunities in the seven policy issues that CSAC is prioritizing for 
2019: wildfires and other disasters, housing and homelessness, In-Home Supportive Services, behavioral 
health, the 2020 U.S. Census, bail reform, and local governance and land use authority. 

 

Wildfires and Other Disasters 
 
Counties need the state’s assistance to respond to the recent catastrophic wildfires, mudslides, and 
other disasters, and to prepare for the future disasters we know await us. 
 
CSAC will advocate for disaster recovery funding, that addresses tax backfills, debris removal, resiliency, 
forest health, and economic assistance. Funding should take the form of direct subventions, exemptions 
from matching requirements, and county eligibility for cap and trade and other grant funds. CSAC will 
also work with the state and federal government to improve forest management and emergency 
communications systems. 
 

Housing and Homelessness 
 
The affordability and availability of housing is at crisis levels in almost every part of the state. The 
housing issue is not only a crisis in its own right, but also a main driver of California’s homelessness 
emergency. 
 
CSAC will advocate for funding for affordable housing, including new state funding for construction of 
homes affordable to households at all income levels. CSAC will continue to focus on implementation of 
recent housing legislation, including allocation of recently approved bonds, as well as full 
implementation of new homelessness programs, such as No Place Like Home. CSAC will also advocate 
for flexibility in the use of existing homelessness funding, so counties can address local needs without 
unnecessary restrictions. 
 

In-Home Supportive Services 
 
A significant and growing gap between IHSS program costs and available revenues will have increasing 
impacts on county budgets and other realignment-funded programs, including public health and 
behavioral health. 
 
CSAC will advocate for a long-term solution to IHSS cost pressures by leading the effort to reopen the 
MOE deal that splits funding requirements between the state and counties. In addition, CSAC will 
continue working with the new Administration and counties on implementation efforts including 
allocation of offsetting revenue, MOE adjustments, and other provisions.  



 

27 | P a g e  
 

 
Draft Policy Priorities for 2019 
California State Association of Counties 

 
Behavioral Health 
 
County behavioral health services remain central to many of the most difficult policy issues for counties, 
such as homelessness, housing, and justice system recidivism and diversion, making it the focus of 
efforts by the federal government, the California Department of Health Care Services, and the 
Legislature. 
 
CSAC will advocate for a sensible balance between state expectations and local authority for Medi-Cal 
Specialty Mental Health Services and the Mental Health Services Act, and the movement to integrate 
behavioral health into the broader health care system. CSAC will also advocate for a fair process for 
allocating a potential $180 million federal recoupment of erroneous mental health billing and 
transparency at the county level.  
 

2020 Census 
 
A complete count of all California residents will help to maintain federal funding levels for a wide variety 
of programs and Congressional representation,  as well as assisting with accurate local redistricting. 
 
CSAC will work with the state and federal governments to ensure promised census funding and 
supporting resources are disbursed to counties. CSAC will also disperse information and coordinate 
efforts so counties have the tools they need to implement their complete count efforts. 
 

Bail Reform 
 
Last year’s SB 10 ended cash bail and moved California to a new pre-trial system. However, this policy is 
tied up in a referendum effort and ongoing litigation and negotiation. Counties, their jails, and their 
sworn officers will play an important role in any replacement system. 
 
CSAC will advocate for funding for any new or revised responsibilities, including the assessment and 
supervision of people charged with crimes. CSAC will also champion county interests in any follow-up 
legislation related to bail reform. 
 

Local Governance and Land Use Authority 
 
From county governance and contracting to housing development, fire safety, and the siting of county 
facilities, the state has increasingly been interested in revisiting the power of communities to make their 
own decisions. 
 
CSAC will advocate for the appropriate balance between statewide concerns and local authority. For 
county governance decisions, such as the makeup of the Board of Supervisors and other county offices, 
the full authority should remain with the people who live in the community. For other issues, such as 
fire safety and housing development, the state’s reasonable interests must be appropriately balanced 
with local circumstances. 



 

28 | P a g e  
 

 
 

Draft Major Policy Issues for 2019 
California State Association of Counties 
 

 

Each year, CSAC’s Board of Directors sets the Association’s state and federal advocacy priorities. These priorities, 
adopted with the input of policy committees, the CSAC Officers, the Executive Committee, and our affiliates, will 
guide CSAC’s advocacy efforts in 2019 both in Sacramento and Washington DC.  
 
As we begin 2019 with a new Governor and Democratic supermajorities in the State Assembly and Senate, we look 
for opportunities to partner on the diverse issues facing California, from homelessness to emergency 
preparedness.  
 
CSAC advocates on a multitude of issues each year, but the following 2019 state and federal priorities and major 
issues are expected to be in the spotlight in 2019. 
 

 

Principles 
 

Funding. County service responsibilities continue to grow, some imposed by state and federal programs and others 
to deal with local aspects of statewide problems. While the state’s fiscal health is unprecedented, most counties’ 
general funds are still struggling to return to pre-recession levels. The state should help fund the public services 
that are carried out by counties to achieve statewide goals. 
 
Authority. The benefit of local governance is the ability to shape services so that they fit the needs, resources, and 
other circumstances of California’s diverse communities. Counties are uniquely suited to provide services to every 
Californian in a way that fits their community. The state should give counties more flexibility to take full advantage 
of their position as local providers of statewide programs, and at the same time allow counties full authority over 
their own local programs and governance. 
 
Partnership. To an extent seen in few other states, counties in California are the level of government that provides 
federal and state programs to residents. County expertise with these programs and services is a resource for state 
policy makers as they consider whether and how to change those programs. 
 
 

Major Policy Issues by Area
Agriculture, Environment, and Natural Resources 

 Disaster Response 

 Climate and Resiliency Funding 

 Land Use, Resiliency, Emergency Management 

 Water Resources and Regulatory Issues 
 
Health and Human Services 

 In-Home Supportive Services 

 Homelessness and Poverty Issues 

 Behavioral Health Improvement 
 
Government Finance and Administration 

 Disaster Recovery Assistance 

 2020 U.S. Census Resources  

 Preserving County Governance Authority 

 Economic Development Tools 

 Collaboration with Employee Representatives 

 
Administration of Justice 

 Bail Reform 

 Trial Court Security 

 Mental Health Diversion 

 Implementation of the Domestic Violence 
Batterer Intervention Programs Legislation 

 Juvenile Hall Repurposing 
 
Housing, Land Use, and Transportation 

 Protect Local Land Use Authority While 
Promoting Housing Affordability 

 Protect State Transportation Funding 

 Prepare for the Future of Transportation 

 Cap and Trade Implementation 

 Renegotiated Gaming Compacts 
  



 

29 | P a g e  
 

Agriculture, Environment, and Natural Resources 
 
Climate and Resiliency Funding. With the passage of 
SB 901 (Dodd, 2018), the State will spend $1 billion 
from Cap and Trade revenues over the next five 
years on fire prevention, forest health, and resiliency 
and related projects. CSAC will work to influence the 
allocation of these funds, advocating for county 
eligibility for a variety of purposes, including local 
tree mortality assistance, forest health projects, 
defensible space initiatives and other programs of 
local significance. With the implementation of SB 
833 (McGuire, 2018), CSAC will work to advocate for 
funds to assist with emergency alert systems, 
including the deployment of WEA technology and 
funding for a statewide 211 program that includes 
non-alert, emergency and disaster preparedness and 
response information. In addition, CSAC will work to 
explore additional opportunities for funding of pre-
hazard mitigation and resiliency funding at both the 
state and federal level. Finally, CSAC will continue to 
focus on other funding opportunities within the 
state’s cap and trade program for greenhouse gas 
(GHG) emissions reductions and adaptation work 
help prepare counties protect against and prepare 
for our changing climate. 
 
Disaster Response. Devastating fires continued 
throughout 2018, with catastrophic wildland and 
urban interface events in Shasta, Butte, Mendocino, 
Ventura, Los Angeles and elsewhere. CSAC will 
prioritize funding and resources to help counties 
begin and continue the recovery process from these 
tragic events. The AENR team will work with the 
Government, Finance and Administration team to 
engage the new Administration and negotiate an 
adequate fiscal relief package for counties impacted 
by fires, including backfill of lost property tax 
revenue, help with debris removal and additional 
economic assistance.  
 
Land Use, Resiliency, and Emergency Management. 
In the aftermath of the legislative debate on fire 
impacts and liability, we anticipate the Legislature 
and outside stakeholder groups to continue to focus 
on the connection between fire prevention and local 
land use issues. Working with the CSAC Housing, 
Land Use and Transportation policy unit, the AENR 
team will engage stakeholders and collect data to 
inform the difficult policy discussion of competing 
pressures for development and housing while 
maintaining safe and sustainable communities. This 

topic will cover issues ranging from rural housing 
elements, high fire severity zone mapping, 
defensible space and local fire prevention initiatives, 
access to insurance, among other topics. In addition, 
CSAC will continue to staff and facilitate the work of 
the CSAC Resiliency Advisory Board to inform these 
discussions and provide ongoing education and 
outreach to county officials.  
 
Cannabis. The state will begin in earnest to issue 
Annual and Provisional Annual licenses for 
commercial cannabis activity in 2019. This also 
initiates the state’s track and trace system, and the 
tracking and collection of commercial cannabis data 
from “seed to sale.” CSAC will continue to provide 
outreach and assistance to counties as they develop 
and implement local cannabis regulatory ordinances. 
In addition, CSAC will work with state regulatory 
agencies to ensure for a coordinated duel-licensing 
system. CSAC will work with other local government 
stakeholders to address the issue of cannabis 
deliveries into jurisdictions that have bans in place, 
and work to create a system that will ensure for 
appropriate tax remittance, should the final 
proposed draft regulations take effect without 
change. In addition, CSAC will continue to support 
the work of the California Cannabis Authority to 
manage a statewide data platform that provides 
local regulators with accurate, real-time regulatory 
and compliance data to help ensure for a safe and 
well-regulated cannabis marketplace in California.  
 
Water Resources and Regulatory Issues. Several 
significant water proposals failed to pass both the 
Legislature and voters in 2018, including the failed 
passage of an $8 billion water bond on the 
November ballot, and the failure of SB 623 
(Monning), a measure that would have created a 
sustainable funding source for contaminated 
drinking water systems, referenced above. CSAC will 
work with stakeholder groups and the Legislature to 
reformulate approaches to funding water projects in 
California while also focusing on outreach and 
education to inform the public of the importance of 
ongoing funding for a variety of water needs, 
including clean drinking water, stormwater and 
other programs. In addition, staff will continue to 
focus on the implementation of several key water 
issues, including the Sustainable Groundwater 
Management Act (SGMA), the passage of SB 231 



 

30 | P a g e  
 

(Hertzberg) and the development of additional 
stormwater funding tools, and ongoing negotiations 
about water quality funding and conservation issues. 
 
CSAC will continue to engage Cal Recycle and the 
waste management stakeholder community on the 
implementation of SB 1383 (Lara, 2016), and the 
development of regulations that will requires a 50 
percent reduction of organic waste by 2020 and a 75 
percent reduction by 2025. Funding and the 
development of infrastructure capable of processing 
organics will be key elements of this discussion and 
the focus of CSAC’s advocacy efforts. In addition, 
CSAC will work with Cal Recycle and the Legislature 
to work towards solutions for the development of 
additional markets for recyclable materials. This is a 
critical issue as the overseas markets have almost 
been eliminated due to a recent Chinese policy, 
known as “National Sword.” This new policy will 
significantly limit the import of US recyclables, 

leaving California with limited options for processing 
these materials in domestic markets.  
 
With respect to other ongoing regulatory issues, 
CSAC will continue to participate in the Forest 
Management Task Force to help implement both the 
executive order in Forest Resiliency and the 
California Forest Carbon Plan. The Forest 
Management Task Force is a successor to the 
Governor’s Tree Mortality Task Force of which CSAC 
was a member. CSAC will work with the state and 
local governments to help meet the new renewable 
energy targets set forth in SB 100 (De Leon, 2018), 
and support the development of Community Choice 
Aggregation (CCA) to help fulfill these goals. In 
addition, CSAC will continue to advocate for ongoing 
funding of Payment-In-Lieu of Taxes (PILT) payments 
to counties and any potential for the reinstatement 
of the Williamson Act subvention program.

 

Health and Human Services 
 
In-Home Supportive Services. In 2019, CSAC’s 
sustained commitment to navigating the impacts of 
the increasing In-Home Supportive Services (IHSS) 
program costs will shift toward seeking a more 
feasible long-term solution to the IHSS cost 
pressures. CSAC secured a reopener provision in the 
2017-18 budget legislation that established the new 
IHSS Maintenance of Effort (MOE) that requires the 
Department of Finance to issue a report examining 
this new IHSS fiscal structure during the 
development of the 2019-20 budget. There is a 
significant and growing gap between IHSS program 
costs and available revenues, and the impacts of the 
MOE on other Realignment-funded programs are 
growing. The priority for 2019 will be leading the 
effort to reopen the MOE deal and developing fiscal 
solutions to ensure long-term sustainability for 
counties to administer IHSS and other realigned 
programs on behalf of the state. In addition, CSAC 
will continue working with a new Administration on 
allocation of offsetting revenue, MOE adjustments, 
and other provisions. Finally, CSAC will continue to 
partner with counties and other stakeholders on 
implementation and education efforts.  
 
Homelessness and Poverty Issues. Homelessness 
issues remain at the top of the county agenda and 
CSAC will continue to leverage the policy expertise of 
the health and human services, housing and land 
use, and administration of justice policy committees 

and staff to implement homelessness funding 
programs from 2018. CSAC will also continue to 
identify and solicit new opportunities to assist 
counties in combatting homelessness, including 
incentivizing all types of affordable housing – 
whether it is transitional shelters, permanent 
supportive housing, sober living environments, and 
the full spectrum of housing in between. CSAC will 
also continue to advocate for funding and flexibility 
at the local level to help meet the unique needs of 
those who are homeless or at risk of homelessness 
in each community.  
 
 Behavioral Health Issues. County Behavioral Health 
will continue to be a focus of the federal 
government, state Department of Health Care 
Services, and the Legislature in 2019, and remains 
the linchpin in many of the most difficult policy 
issues for counties, such as homelessness, housing, 
and justice system recidivism and diversion. The 
spotlight on Mental Health Services Act funding and 
a potential $180 million federal recoupment of 
erroneous mental health billing will require strong 
advocacy by counties. Furthermore, the state’s 
interest in integrating behavioral health services into 
the health care system requires close monitoring 
and coalition-building. CSAC will continue to engage 
on behalf of all counties on behavioral health 
funding, services, and legislative proposals in 2019.



 

31 | P a g e  
 

Government Finance and Administration 
 
Disaster Recovery Assistance. CSAC will work with 
the Administration and the Legislature to partner on 
solutions this year that will make California more 
resilient against the impacts of natural disasters and 
climate change, including modernizing our forest 
practices, protecting infrastructure, and enhancing 
emergency communications systems. This also 
includes securing property tax backfill for counties 
impacted by the latest slate of wildfires and those 
that continue to feel the impacts one year later. In 
some instances these counties are one in the same. 
 
Census Resources for a Full and Complete Count. 
The decennial census is of critical importance to 
county programs and funding – over $11 billion in 
direct allocations plus additional state subventions. 
In the coming census California faces unique 
challenges due to the large percentage of “hard to 
count” communities – or populations that 
historically have been undercounted. In addition, the 
heavy reliance on digital data collection could create 
hurdles for rural areas or individuals lacking online 
access. CSAC will act as a communications conduit 
between state and local agencies, disseminate 
timely information from regional and statewide 
stakeholder groups including those representing 
community based organizations, provide platforms 
for peer to peer sharing between counties and best 
practices, and advocate for adequate resources, 
including financial support. 
 
Preserving County Governance Authority. This 
priority speaks to a core tenet of CSAC as an 
organization. Several bills have directly challenged 
county authority and sought to weaken Boards of 
Supervisors’ discretion and decision-making power 
on behalf of their constituents, such as AB 1250 

(2017) related to establishing contracts with service 
providers. Charter county models have also been 
called into question. CSAC will advocate for 
protecting Board authority for budget approval, 
redistricting, and rights granted through charter 
adoption and amendments; and protect existing 
mechanisms that reflect local voter will for changes 
to the board size, district boundaries, or funding 
levels for local service needs. 
 
Economic Development Tools. Many economic 
development tools, including the former 
redevelopment agencies, relied heavily on property 
tax increment financing. Newer proposals continue 
to rely on this resource with varying degrees of 
accountability and oversight. Other state and federal 
tax credits and incentives to grow and attract 
business interests may prove helpful with further 
refinement. Governor-elect Newsom’s extensive 
interest in this policy area, particularly to assist with 
housing, will mean counties will need to be active 
partners to ensure local interests are not 
overwhelmed by statewide goals. 
 
Collaboration with Employee Representatives. 
CSAC will fully engage again this upcoming year to 
ensure that counties as employers maintain the 
ability to effectively manage their workforces while 
also maintaining the highly valued benefits provided 
to their employees. Furthermore, CSAC will continue 
to find partnerships as appropriate with labor union 
advocates where collaboratively on several issues 
including most recently property tax revenue 
protection, including those from Redevelopment 2.0 
and the real estate industry threats, and the In-
Home Supportive Services MOE. 

 

Administration of Justice 
 
Bail Reform. The California Money Bail Reform Act 
was signed into law in August of this year. This 
legislation provides for the establishment of a new 
pretrial release system that includes pretrial 
assessment services provided by courts or public 
agencies, such as county probation departments. 
Counties will have the option to contract with the 
Judicial Council to perform this function. This new 
law will become effective October 1, 2019 and 
changes the current money bail system to a risk-

based system. There is a referendum pending and, if 
the referendum qualifies, it will delay 
implementation until 2020. CSAC will work closely 
with the Administration, Judicial Council and the 
Chief Probation Officers California to help ensure 
that counties have the funding necessary for 
planning, should a county chose to contract with 
Judicial Council to handle the pre-trial assessments 
and supervision.  
 



 

32 | P a g e  
 

Trial Court Security. Trial Court Security was 
realigned to the counties as part of 2011 
Realignment. The amount of funding that was 
provided to the counties has not kept up with 
increased personnel and security costs. As such, a 
number of counties are either in litigation or on the 
cusp of litigation with their local courts. CSAC will 
work to make Trial Court Security more functional.  
 
Mental Health Diversion. Assembly Bill 1810 
(Chapter 34, Statutes of 2018) was signed into law 
last session. This bill created a new diversion 
program for mentally ill offenders provided certain 
requirements are met, including the availability of a 
treatment program for the offender. There were a 
number of concerns raised by counties about the 
fact that the program applied to all offenses, as well 
as concerns about the procedural aspects of the 
program. SB 215 (Chapter 1005, Statutes of 2018) 
helped to remedy a number of these concerns. 
Specifically, the bill excludes certain violent offenses 
from the diversion program (including murder and 
sex offenses), preserves victim restitution, and 
allows the court to require the defendant to make a 
prima facie showing that the defendant will meet 
the minimum requirements of eligibility for diversion 
and that the defendant and the offense are suitable 
for diversion. CSAC worked with Senator Beall’s 

office and supported this measure. CSAC will 
continue to work with the legislature to make this 
program workable for the counties.  
 
Implementation of Domestic Violence Batterer 
Intervention Programs. AB 372 (Chapter 290, 
Statutes of 2018) was sponsored by CSAC and 
authorizes a pilot program that allows the counties 
of Napa, Santa Barbara, San Luis Obispo, Santa Clara, 
Santa Cruz, and Yolo to offer an alternative to the 
batterer’s intervention treatment program. The 
pilots will serve as the first step in assessing whether 
alternative approaches are more effective in 
addressing the criminogenic needs of batterers and 
reducing recidivism. CSAC will facilitate the 
discussion of the implementation of AB 372 by 
providing research and guidance to the six counties 
to better assess the needs of domestic violence 
offenders. 
 
Juvenile Hall Repurposing. Juvenile justice in 
California has undergone a variety of reforms in the 
past decade. These reforms have led to a lower 
juvenile offender population and an increase in 
the number of vacant beds in local juvenile 
detention facilities. CSAC will work with 
stakeholders to look at long term solutions for 
utilization of these vacant beds.  

 

Housing, Land Use, and Transportation 
 
Protect Local Land Use Authority while Promoting 
Housing Affordability. With housing affordability 
and the related homelessness crisis poised to once 
again be a high-priority issue in 2019, CSAC will 
continue to advocate for an appropriate balance 
between legitimate statewide goals for housing 
production and affordability and appropriate 
discretion for local communities in implementing 
these policies through locally-driven plans. 
Initial housing funding from the 2017 housing 
package is beginning to roll out to counties, as the 
Department of Housing and Community 
Development has issued draft guidelines for 
planning grants and homelessness funding from SB 2 
(Atkins, 2017), which is expected to raise 
approximately $250 million annually. In 2019 and 
beyond, counties and cities will receive seventy-
percent of this funding to support local affordable 
housing. In addition, voters approved Proposition 1, 
a $4 billion statewide housing bond, on the 
November General Election ballot, so CSAC will focus 

on implementation and maximizing opportunities for 
counties to secure funding for local housing 
priorities in 2019. While Proposition 1 and SB 2 
funding will go a long way to addressing California’s 
backlog of homes affordable to households at all 
income levels, CSAC will also work with partners in 
2019 to expand the ability of the state and local 
government to meet the need for affordable homes. 
Finally, housing-related issues continue to cross over 
with multiple other policy areas within CSAC. The 
Housing, Land Use and Transportation policy unit 
will continue coordinating and collaborating with the 
Health and Human Services policy unit on 
interactions between housing and homelessness; 
with the Agriculture, Environment and Natural 
Resources policy committee on the relationship 
between land use and housing with resiliency and 
disaster recovery; and with the Government, Finance 
and Administration policy team on the connections 
between housing and economic development tools 
for local government.  



 

33 | P a g e  
 

Protect State Transportation Funding. If legislation 
introduced in 2018 is any indication of what may 
come in 2019, counties and transportation 
stakeholders will need to continue to be vigilant. For 
instance, proposals to hold hostage transportation 
funding until affordable housing outcomes are met 
are likely to resurface. Protecting transportation 
funding will continue to be a priority for the HLT 
Policy Unit. CSAC will also continue to pursue 
additional streamlining opportunities and intends to 
sponsor legislation to expand the existing “match-
exchange” program where the state exchanges local 
shares of federal funds for state dollars thereby 
reducing the federal footprint, eliminating 
duplicative environmental reviews, and saving time 
and money on transportation projects.  
 
Preparing for the Future of Transportation. 
Automated and connected vehicles are being tested 
and deployed across the country. The implications of 
autonomous and other transportation related 
technology are far reaching and can be both 
beneficial and potentially disruptive to mobility, the 
economy and overall quality of life. Other 
advancements such as transportation network 
companies may have compounding effects on the 
implications of this rapidly-changing technology. 
CSAC, through a multidisciplinary county working 
group, will develop a set of principles regarding the 
role of counties in the oversight and regulation of 
automated and connected vehicles. Moreover, to 
the extent that automated vehicles are electric 
vehicles and therefore do not adequately pay for 
their use of transportation infrastructure, CSAC will 
continue to monitor and engage in discussions about 
a long-term, sustainable replacement revenue 
stream to the gas tax.  
 
Cap and Trade Implementation. With the extension 
of AB 32, the California Global Warming Solutions 
Act of 2006, through 2030, the California Air 
Resources Board (CARB) is currently in the middle of 
a second update to the Scoping Plan to reflect the 
new greenhouse gas emissions targets (GHGs) 
targets (reducing our GHGs to at least 40% below 
the 1990 level by 2030). CSAC HLT staff will continue 
to work in coordination with the CSAC Agriculture, 
Environment, and Natural Resources policy 
committee staff to comment on and participate in 
the Scoping Plan update process.  

CSAC HLT staff will also monitor and defend against 
efforts to erode local control over land use decisions 
in a variety of contexts. While it is unclear where the 
new Administration stands on SB 375 related issues, 
there appears to be growing dissatisfaction in the 
Legislature over the implementation of SB 375; 
specifically the transportation, housing and land use 
decisions local agencies are making and the 
perceived impacts those decisions have on statewide 
climate goals. It is important to get out in front of 
some of these conversations with proactive, positive 
information about the land use decisions counties 
are making that help meet our climate goals and are 
consistent with sustainable communities strategies 
and other local climate action plans.  
 
County Priorities in Renegotiated Gaming 
Compacts. Governor Brown continued to 
renegotiate state-tribal gaming compacts in 2018 
with several tribes whose current compacts would 
otherwise expire in the near future. While each of 
these agreements have included key provisions of 
importance to counties, the change in 
Administrations will require active engagement from 
CSAC and affected counties to ensure that ongoing 
priorities for revised compacts are fulfilled. Those 
priorities include judicially-enforceable local 
mitigation agreements for any new or expanded 
gaming or related facilities, a more comprehensive 
tribal environmental review process, and mitigation 
mechanisms for preexisting local off-reservation 
impacts from gaming enterprises underway prior to 
the date of any new compact.  
The Special Distribution Fund (SDF), which was the 
sole statewide mechanism for mitigation of local 
government gaming impacts under the 1999 
compacts has not had sufficient funding for SDF 
grants to local governments since FY 2014-15. The 
Legislature and Governor have been unwilling to 
backfill the account while 1999 Compacts are being 
renegotiated. While SDF grants have been 
insufficient to mitigate all local impacts since the 
program’s inception, CSAC will continue to look for 
opportunities to fund the SDF or another mechanism 
to fund mitigation from pre-existing impacts, 
especially for counties where local casino mitigation 
agreements are not in place. The change in 
Administrations may offer an opportunity to 
reassess the SDF program. 

 



 

34 | P a g e  
 

CSAC 2019 Federal Advocacy Priorities 
 
After two years of Republican control of Congress and the White House, 2019 will usher in the return of divided 
government as Democrats take the helm of the House of Representatives and the GOP slightly pads what was the 
narrowest of majorities in the Senate. While attempts at legislative deal making will undoubtedly be influenced by 
the looming 2020 presidential and congressional elections, there will be opportunities for bipartisan collaboration, 
particularly, for example, with respect to development of an infrastructure package. 
 
For his part, President Trump will head into the second half of his administration aiming to build upon the 
aggressive deregulatory agenda that is currently underway at a number of federal departments and agencies. 
Legislatively, the president has indicated his willingness to work with the new House Democratic majority in 
several key areas, though it remains to be seen how much room for cooperation will exist in 2019. 
 
California County Spending Priorities. Absent a new 
bipartisan agreement that lifts the fiscal year 2020 
sequester-level spending caps prescribed by the Budget 
Control Act (BCA), congressional appropriators will be 
forced to cut billions of dollars in defense and non-
defense discretionary spending as part of next year’s 
budget. Regardless of whether Congress ultimately 
votes to suspend the BCA caps, CSAC will be working to 
protect the myriad of federal spending programs that 
are of vital interest to California’s counties. 
 
Transportation and Infrastructure. While efforts to 
advance a broad infrastructure package fell short during 
the 115

th
 Congress, the incoming leaders of the House 

and Senate along with President Trump have indicated 
that infrastructure spending will be a key priority in 
2019. CSAC will continue to urge members of the 
California congressional delegation to prioritize the 
significant infrastructure investment needs at the local 
level while looking for opportunities to enhance and 
streamline the transportation project delivery process. 
 
On a closely related matter, the nation’s highway and 
transit authorization law – the Fixing America’s Surface 
Transportation Act (FAST Act) – is set to expire during 
the 116

th
 Congress. Within the context of FAST Act 

reauthorization, CSAC will continue to emphasize the 
importance of the county road system with respect to 
federal transportation policy and advocate for new 
revenues for programs of importance to counties, such 
as safety and bridge projects. 
 
Federal Healthcare Policy. CSAC will continue to 
support efforts to maintain and support the Affordable 
Care Act (ACA), including funding the expanded 
Medicaid program and insurance subsidies for 
individuals and families with incomes above the 
Medicaid eligibility thresholds. 
 
Additionally, CSAC will continue to support bipartisan  

efforts to eliminate the ACA excise tax, which is slated 
to go into effect in 2022. A number of California 
counties offer health insurance plans and related 
programs that will be subjected to the tax on high-cost 
plans. 
 
Changes to Entitlement Programs. CSAC will work to 
protect California county interests as part of any 
Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF) 
reauthorization legislation, including working to restore 
state and county flexibility to tailor work and family 
stabilization activities to families’ individual needs. 
CSAC also will support maintaining the focus on work 
activities under TANF, while recognizing that “work 
first” does not mean “work only.” 
 
Homelessness. CSAC will support increased federal 
appropriations and new legislative initiatives to support 
housing programs that offer comprehensive services 
and case management for individuals and families 
experiencing homelessness.  
 
Child Welfare Financing Reform. CSAC will support 
increased federal funding for services and income 
support needed by parents seeking to reunify with 
children who are in foster care. CSAC also supports 
increased financial support for programs that assist 
foster youth in the transition to self-sufficiency, 
including post-emancipation assistance such as 
secondary education, job training, and access to health 
care.  
 
In addition, CSAC will work to protect and retain the 
entitlement nature of the Title IV-E Foster Care and 
Adoption Assistance programs while seeking the 
elimination of outdated rules that base a child’s 
eligibility for funds on parental income and 
circumstances. The association also supports federal 
funding to address the service needs of youth who are 
victims of commercial sexual exploitation.  



 

35 | P a g e  
 

Finally, CSAC will continue work with Congress and the 
administration to provide maximum flexibility in 
meeting provisions of the Family First Prevention 
Services Act (FFPSA), including offering a broad array of 
prevention services and administrative actions to better 
align the FFPSA’s congregate care provisions with the 
state’s Continuum of Care reforms. 
 
Indian Affairs / Fee-to-Trust Reform. CSAC will 
continue to lead local government efforts aimed at 
securing a comprehensive legislative overhaul of the 
Department of the Interior’s fee-to-trust process. 
Similarly, CSAC will continue to urge the U.S. 
Department of the Interior to approve a series of key 
fee-to-trust process reforms as part of the 
Department’s 25 CFR Part 151 regulatory review effort. 
 
Public Lands. CSAC will continue to advocate for a long-
term reauthorization of mandatory entitlement funding 
for the Payments-in-lieu-of-Taxes (PILT) program, as 
well as the Secure Rural Schools (SRS) program. Absent 
long-term renewals of these critical funding sources, 
CSAC will continue to support short-term programmatic 
extensions. 
 
In addition, CSAC will continue to advocate for 
responsible reforms to federal land management. Such 
reform efforts should promote healthy forests, protect 
endangered species habitat, safeguard downstream 
water quality, improve California’s water supply, and 
reduce the risk of wildfires.  
 
Finally, CSAC will continue to urge the federal 
government to provide assistance through the 
Department of Agriculture and the Federal Emergency 
Management Agency to help California address its tree 
mortality crisis. 
 
Justice Funding. CSAC will continue to serve as a lead 
advocate in efforts to protect, as well as enhance, the 
State Criminal Alien Assistance (SCAAP) program, which 
is a key source of federal funding for a significant 
number of California’s counties. CSAC also will continue 
to advocate for a long-term reauthorization of SCAAP 
and will continue to seek several key reimbursement-
criteria changes to the program.  
 
With regard to the Victims of Crime Act (VOCA) and the 
Violence Against Women Act (VAWA), CSAC will 
continue to urge Congress to provide adequate funding 
for these importance victim services programs. 
 

Federal Disaster Assistance. In the aftermath of the 
most destructive and costly wildfires in state history, 
CSAC will continue to advocate for federal disaster 
assistance to help communities impacted by the 
devastating effects of the fires. 
 
Remote Sales Tax. In the wake of the Supreme Court’s 
2018 ruling in South Dakota v. Wayfair, states can now 
require online retailers to collect and remit sales taxes, 
regardless of whether they have a “physical 
presence” in that particular state. Following the 
Wayfair decision, a number of states, including 
California, are moving to capitalize on this lost tax 
revenue. Such widespread state-level action could serve 
as the impetus for Congress to consider legislation – 
similar to the Marketplace Fairness Act – that would 
create a national framework for tax collection. CSAC will 
support efforts aimed at further strengthening state 
and local taxing authority and will oppose legislation 
that seeks to overturn the Wayfair decision. 
 
State and Local Tax Deduction. The 2017 Tax Cuts and 
Jobs Act (PL 115-97) allows taxpayers to deduct 
property taxes and income or sales taxes, but only up to 
a combined cap of $10,000. Prior to the Act, federal 
taxpayers could deduct the entirety of their state and 
local property taxes, as well as their state income taxes 
or sales tax. CSAC supports legislation that would fully 
restore the SALT deduction and opposes any effort to 
further reduce or eliminate this tax benefit.  
 
Tax Exempt Bonds. The Tax Cuts and Jobs Act fully 
preserved the tax exempt status of municipal bonds 
and Private Activity Bonds (PABs), though eliminated 
the exemption for advance refunding bonds, which 
counties use to refinance outstanding bonds to take 
advantage of better terms and rates. CSAC will continue 
to support the municipal bond and PAB tax exemption, 
as well as legislation that would restore the exemption 
for advance refunding bonds. 
 
Environmental Regulatory Reform. With the Trump 
administration taking a series of actions to dismantle 
Obama-era environmental regulations – such as the 
Clean Power Plan and the Waters of the United States 
(WOTUS) rule – CSAC will continue to monitor executive 
and administrative actions that could impact 
California’s counties. 
 
Executive Action on Immigration-related Policy. CSAC 
will continue to closely monitor the potential impact of 
legislative and regulatory actions that would have the 
effect of cutting off certain federal 



 

36 | P a g e  
 

 
funds to California’s counties, including new standards 
announced by the Department of Justice that would 
preclude the state’s counties from being eligible for 
SCAAP payments beginning with the fiscal year 2020 
application cycle. It should be noted that the Trump 
administration’s executive and administrative actions 
aimed at withholding federal funds from so-called 
“sanctuary jurisdictions” remain the subject of a 
number of lawsuits across the country. Accordingly, 
CSAC will continue to closely monitor the outcome of 
these judicial proceedings. 
 
Cannabis. While 33 states and the District of Columbia 
have legalized the use of cannabis for medicinal or 
recreational purposes, it is still classified as a Schedule 1 
narcotic under the Controlled Substances Act. As a 
result, the use, possession, and sale of cannabis 
remains a federal crime, which has created significant 
issues for states that have legalized cannabis use. In an 
effort to address the conflict between federal and state 
law, CSAC supports legislation that would allow states 
to determine their own cannabis policies. CSAC also 
supports legislation that would ensure greater access to 
banking for cannabis-related businesses, as well as 
proper medical research on the effects of cannabis use. 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

37 | P a g e  
 

California State Association of Counties 
Conflict of Interest Policy 

 
Article I 
Purpose 

The California State Association of Counties (“CSAC”) is a California nonprofit mutual benefit 
corporation.  Members of the Board of Directors (“Board Members”) of CSAC are subject to certain legal 
obligations in the performance of the duties of their position.  For this reason, CSAC is establishing this 
Conflict of Interest Policy for its Board Members. 
 
CSAC Board Members are required to exercise good faith in all transactions involving their duties, and 
they are subject to certain obligations not to use their position, or knowledge gained through their 
position, for their personal benefit.  In their dealings with CSAC, Board Members should be mindful of 
potential conflict of interests. 

Article II 
Standard of Care 

In determining potential conflicts of interest, the following standard of care shall be applicable: 
 

A. Board Members shall perform their duties in good faith, in a manner they believe to be in 
the best interest of CSAC, with such care, including reasonable inquiry, as an ordinary 
prudent person in a like position would use under the circumstances. 
 

B. Board Members are required in their capacity as members of a Board of Supervisors to 
receive training on ethics and conflicts of interest that satisfies the requirements of AB 
1234.  Board Members shall perform their duties in a manner consistent with the principles 
addressed in this training.   

 
C. Board Members are entitled to rely on the information, opinions, reports or statements 

(including financial statements and other financial data) prepared or presented by officers 
or employees of CSAC, independent accountants, and other experts who provide 
professional services to CSAC, provided that Board Members believe such individuals are 
reliable and competent, and that the matters on which they present are within their 
professional or expert competence.  Board Members may also rely on the information, 
opinions, reports or statements of any committee of the Board of Directors with respect to 
matters within that committee’s designated authority if Board Members believe the 
committee merits their confidence.  Board Members are entitled to rely on the information, 
opinions, reports or statements of any person, firm, or committee if, after reasonable 
inquiry when the need therefore is indicated by the circumstances, they have no knowledge 
that would cause such reliance to be unwarranted. 

 
Article III 

Conflicts and Disclosure 
A. Board Members are necessarily involved in the affairs of other institutions and 

organizations.  Effective boards and organizations will include individuals who have 
relationships and affiliations that may raise questions about perceived conflicts of interest.  
Although many such potential conflicts are and will be deemed inconsequential, every Board 
Member has the responsibility to ensure the entire Board of Directors is made aware of 
situations that involve personal, familial, or business relationships that could create a real or 
perceived conflict of interest.  Every Board Member is also a member of a Board of 



 

38 | P a g e  
 

Supervisors for a County in the State of California, and their counties pay dues to support 
CSAC.  Decisions by Board Members related to setting dues for CSAC membership is deemed 
not to be a conflict of interest.  Board Members are required annually to be familiar with the 
terms of this policy, and to acknowledge by his or her signature that he or she is acting in 
accordance with the letter and spirit of this policy.  

  
B. Board Members are required to make a full disclosure to the Board of Directors of all 

material facts regarding any possible conflict of interest, to describe the transaction, and to 
disclose the details of their interest.  CSAC shall, as appropriate, seek the opinion of legal 
counsel and such other authorities as may be required, before entering into any such 
transaction.  Before approving a transaction in which a Board Member may have a conflict 
of interest, the Board of Directors will attempt, in good faith and after reasonable 
investigation under the circumstances, to determine that: 

 
(1) CSAC is entering into the transaction for its own benefit; 
(2) The transaction is fair and reasonable as to CSAC at the time CSAC entered into the 

transaction; 
(3) The Board of Directors has knowledge of the material facts concerning the 

transaction and the director’s or officer’s interest in the transaction; and 
(4) CSAC cannot obtain a more advantageous arrangement with reasonable effort 

under the circumstances. 
 
The Board of Directors must then approve the transaction by a vote of a majority of the 
Board of Directors then in office, without counting the vote of any director who may have a 
conflict of interest due to the transaction under consideration. 

 
CALIFORNIA STATE ASSOCIATION OF COUNTIES 

CONFLICTS OF INTEREST DISCLOSURE STATEMENT 
 

 I hereby certify that I have carefully read and hereby acknowledge receipt of a copy of this 
Conflict of Interest policy.  In signing this Disclosure Statement, I have considered not only the literal 
expression of the policy, but also what I believe to be the spirit of the policy as well.  To the best of my 
knowledge, information and belief, I hereby certify that, except as stated in the exception below, 
neither I nor any of my relatives by blood or marriage has any direct or indirect interest that conflicts 
with the interests of CSAC. 
  

 The exceptions are as follows (if more space is required, please attached additional page[s]; if no 
exceptions, please leave space blank): 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 If any situation should arise in the future that, as discussed in the policy, may involve me or my 
relatives by blood or marriage in a conflict of interest, I will promptly disclose the circumstances to the 
Board of Directors of CSAC. 
 ________________________    _________________________     __________________________  
 Date    Name     Signature 
 

 



 

39 | P a g e  
 

 



 

40 | P a g e  
 

 



 

41 | P a g e  
 

 



 

42 | P a g e  
 

 



 

43 | P a g e  
 

 



 

44 | P a g e  
 

 



 

45 | P a g e  
 

 



 

46 | P a g e  
 

 



47 |  P a g e

 

2019  
CSAC Calendar of Events | Executive Committee 

 

JANUARY 

1 New Year’s Day 
16 Rural County Representatives of California (RCRC) Board Meeting & Installation of Officers 
16 CSAC Executive Committee Orientation Dinner | Sacramento 

6:30 PM Reception, 7:15 Pm Dinner | Esquire Grill – 13th & K Streets 
17 CSAC Executive Committee Meeting | Sacramento 
21 Martin Luther King, Jr. Day 

30 – 31  CSAC Premier Corporate Partner Forum | San Diego 

  

FEBRUARY 
14 CSAC Board of Directors Meeting |Sacramento 
18 President’s Day 
20 Rural County Representatives of California (RCRC) Executive Committee Meeting | Sacramento 

  

MARCH 
2 – 6  NACo Legislative Conference | Washington, D.C. 

13 Rural County Representatives of California (RCRC) Board of Directors Meeting | Sacramento 
TBD Regional Meeting | TBD 

  

APRIL 
4 CSAC Executive Committee Meeting | Sacramento 

24 – 25  CSAC Legislative Conference | Sacramento 
25 CSAC Board of Directors Meeting | Sacramento 

  

MAY 
1 Rural County Representatives of California (RCRC) Board of Directors Meeting | Sacramento 

15 – 17  NACo WIR Conference | Spokane County, Washington 
22 Rural County Representatives of California (RCRC) Executive Committee Meeting | Sacramento 
27 Memorial Day 

  

JUNE 
TBD Regional Meeting | TBD 

19 Rural County Representatives of California (RCRC) Board of Directors Meeting | Sacramento 
  

JULY 
4 Independence Day 

10 Rural County Representatives of California (RCRC) Executive Committee Meeting | Sacramento 
11 – 15  NACo Annual Conference | Clark County, Las Vegas, Nevada 

  

AUGUST 
1 CSAC Executive Committee Meeting | Sacramento 

14 Rural County Representatives of California (RCRC) Board of Directors Meeting | Sacramento 
  

SEPTEMBER 
2 Labor Day 
5 CSAC Board of Directors Meeting | Sacramento 

25 Rural County Representatives of California (RCRC) Board of Directors Meeting | Sacramento 
TBD Regional Meeting | TBD 

  
 



48 |  P a g e

 

OCTOBER 
2 – 4  CSAC Executive Committee Retreat | TBD 

14 Columbus Day 
16 Rural County Representatives of California (RCRC) Executive Committee Meeting | Sacramento 

  
 

NOVEMBER 
11 Veterans’ Day 
13 Rural County Representatives of California (RCRC) Executive Committee Meeting | Sacramento 
28 Thanksgiving Day 

  

DECEMBER 
3 – 6  CSAC 125th Annual Meeting | Hilton, San Francisco 

5 CSAC Board of Directors Meeting | San Francisco 
11 Rural County Representatives of California (RCRC) Board of Directors Meeting | Sacramento 

18 – 20  CSAC Officers’ Retreat | Napa County 
25 Christmas Day 

 
as of 12/12/18 


	AGENDA
	1 - Roll Call
	2 - Approval of Minutes
	3 - CSAC Organizational Structure
	Your Role As An Executive Committee Member
	NACo Involvement
	CSAC Staff Directory
	CSAC Organizational Structure

	4 - CSAC Strategic Plan Review
	5 - Discussion of 2019 State & Federal Legislative & Budget Priorities
	Agriculture, Environment & Natural Resources
	Health & Human Services
	Government Finance & Administration
	Administration of Justice
	Housing, Land Use & Transportation

	6 - Information Items
	Conflict of Interest Policy
	CSAC Institute 2019 Course Schedule
	2019 Calendar of Events





